ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COMVERCE STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 2, 2005
3:27 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Tom Anderson, Chair
Representative Gabriell e LeDoux
Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
Representative Harry Crawf ord
Representati ve Pete Kott

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Bob Lynn
Representative David Guttenberg

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 3
Rel ating to renewabl e energy resource devel opnent.

- MOVED HCR 3 QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 150

"An  Act requiring licensure of occupations relating to
radi ol ogi ¢ technol ogy, radiation therapy, and nuclear nedicine
t echnol ogy; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 147

"An Act relating to the regulation of insurance, insurance
licensing, surplus |lines, insurer deposits, notor vehicle
service contracts, guaranteed autonobile protection products,
health discount plans, third-party adm nistrators, self-funded
mul tiple enpl oyer wel fare arrangenent s, and sel f - funded
governnmental plans; and providing for an effective date."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HCR 3

SHORT TITLE: RENEWABLE ENERGY ALASKA PRQJECT
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) RAMRAS

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -1- March 2, 2005



02/ 22/ 05
02/ 22/ 05
03/ 02/ 05

TITE

BILL: HB 150

READ THE FI RST TI ME -
L&C, RES
L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

REFERRALS

SHORT TI TLE: LI CENSI NG RADI OLOd CAL TECHNI ClI ANS

SPONSOR( s)

02/ 14/ 05
02/ 14/ 05
02/ 23/ 05
02/ 23/ 05
03/ 02/ 05

EEEEE:

BILL: HB 147
SHORT TI TLE:
SPONSOR( s) :

| NSURANCE

02/ 14/ 05
02/ 14/ 05
02/ 23/ 05
02/ 23/ 05
02/ 23/ 05
03/ 02/ 05

I33z32

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE JAY RAMRAS
Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke

CHRI S ROSE, Executive Dir

REPRESENTATI VE(s) ANDERSON

READ THE FI RST TI ME -
L&C, JUD, FIN

L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17
Schedul ed But Not Heard
L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

REFERRALS

RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

READ THE FI RST TI ME -
L&C, FIN

L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( L&C)

L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

REFERRALS

as the sponsor of HCR 3.

ector

New Energy for Al aska Project
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HCR 3.

JON BI TTNER, St af f
Represent ati ve Ander son
Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 150 on behal f

Represent ati ve Ander son

DONNA RUFSHOLM  Chai r man
Al aska Soci ety for

Radi ol ogi cal

of

Technol ogi sts

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 150.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE

t he sponsor,

March 2, 2005



CLYDE PEARCE, Chief Inspector,

Radi ol ogi cal Heal th Program

Section of Laboratories/State of Al aska/ DH&SS
Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 150.

ED HALL, physician assistant and | egislative |iaison,
Al askan Acadeny of Physician Assistants

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 150.

BARBARA  HUFF- TUCKNESS, di rector of gover nient al affairs,
Teansters Uni on 159

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 150.

STEVE GACE, physician assistant,

SE Al aska Heal t hcare Consortium

Sitka, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 150.

ANN DAI LY, physician assistant

Regi onal clinic

Il'l1iama, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 150.

GUMENSI NDO ROSALES, registered radiol ogical technol ogi st
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 150.

CHRI STI NE SASSE, Director

Depart ment of Fi nance

City of Val dez

Val dez, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 147.

GREG CULBERT, Assistant School Superintendent,

Gal ena School District

Gal ena, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 147.

MATT LARKI N, Broker,

WIllis of Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 147.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- March 2, 2005



Rl CHARD CAMPBELL, General Services Director

Human Resour ces

Kenai Peni nsul a Bor ough

Kenai, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 147.

MARY STOLL, trust attorney,

Law O fices of Mary L. Stol

Seattl e, Washi ngton

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 147.

COLLEEN SAVO E, benefits consultant and vice president,
Mar sh USA

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 147.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R TOM ANDERSON cal | ed the House Labor and Conmerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:27:59 PM Represent ati ves
Crawford, Rokeberg, Ledoux, and Anderson were present at the
call to order. Representatives Lynn, and CGuttenberg are excused
from the neeting. Representative Kott arrived as the neeting
was in progress.

HCR 3- RENEWABLE ENERGY ALASKA PRQJECT

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE CONCURRENT RESCLUTION NO 3, Relating to renewable
energy resource devel opnent.

3:29: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JAY RAMRAS, Al aska State Legislature, introduced
the bill, stating that although the state is awash in petrol eum
and oil, the state does have other alternative energy sources.
Al aska has an opportunity to be at the forefront of the energy
production and this resolution recognizes these facts and urges
the Governor and his office to work with these individuals and
groups ai med at devel opi ng these future energy sources.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS then stated that the local utility conpany

in Fairbanks issues a nmmgazine that recently had sone
interesting facts about green power comng to the area that
Golden Valley Electric Association manages. This article, he

sai d, has sone interesting statistics:

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -4- March 2, 2005



-86 percent agree that electrical utilities need to pl an
for the eventual dem se of nonrenewabl e fossil fuels.

-82 percent agree that Al askans need to invest now for
future devel opment of alternative energy.

-79 percent agree that it nmeans a |lot that energy come from
environnmental | y sound sources.

-72 percent agree that devel oping green power isS necessary
to reduce pollution em ssions fromfossil fuels.

-64 percent agree that increasing the use of green power
will reduce the need for inported petroleum and increase
nati onal security.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS ended by stating that he was very excited
about this resolution and will have a bill that will begin by
showing initial steps being made by communities in Bethel, who
are experinmenting with wind power by using Al aska Industrial
Devel opnent Authority to help bring down the costs for the
CONSUITErs.

3:31: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS continued his conclusion by stating that
the big issue for this particular subject is the cost of
alternative energy sources. This is, he said, the big issue
with alternative energy. He pointed out that it costs way nore
to produce a kilowatt than it does with nore conventional energy
sour ces.

3:31: 51 PM

CHAI R ANDERSON indicated that he supported the resolution and
was | ooking forward to seeing the bill in final form He then
asked Representative Crawford if it were simlar to one of his
bills.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD answered that is was very simlar to a
several bills and he thought it was excellent then and added
that Ranras had nmade it an even better bill.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG, in regards to a conference on clinate
change with energy conservation, he found that many states are
finding that sone legislators are creating what they believe to
be 'Sons of Kyoto' bills, which, he said, referred to a very
prom sing but ultimately unsigned environmental treaty between
various countries of the world and the United States.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 5- March 2, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG indicated that he felt that this bill
had a strange ring to the Kyoto protocol and that he knew that
simlar legislation in other states were when they made policy
statenents on portfolio allocation of generations for the power

generation capabilities of the future. This set state policy
about what types of sources are used. He then asked if it was
appropriate for | egislature to get involved in energy

| egi sl ati on.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS answered that he agreed that it was an
appropriate issue. He indicated that Al aska has unique needs
for energy sources. One exanple of this is wind power in the
Fai rbanks area. This type of energy is really not particularly
valuable since that area has good reserves of coal and can
generate electricity that way. He then stated that the goal is
to deliver thermal units of energy across the state cheaply and
that there are many industries that require an abundance of
energy and alternate energy is a viable option. He pointed out
an exanple in California where Governor Arnold Schwarzenegger is
wor king on creating the 'Hydrogen H ghway'. For Al aska to be an
i nnovator, he said, even as the state sits upon thousands of
barrels of crude oil and a healthy supply of natural gas, the

state mnust pursue alternative energy options. This nove, he
said, should be applauded and not continually couched into a
political statenment [against progressive thinking]. He ended by

stating that this speaks to the desires of many for Al aska to be
a |l eader in energy devel opnent.

3:36:47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG replied that he agreed wth the
sentinents of the previous speaker, and then said that it's
interesting to note that interest in the market for w nd power
has grown so substantially in Europe and the entry of Genera
Electric into creating new types of turbines that have been able
to drive the cost down from 20 cents per kilowatt hour to 5.5
cents per Kkilowatt hour. He pointed out that despite this
devel opnent, green power always costs nore than conventional
sour ces. However, he commented that many people are wlling to
pay nore for the service because it comes from alternative
source. He then asked if Representative Ranras had ever taken a
poll in the Valley to determine if this were the case there as
wel | .

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS answered that this does seem contradictory

since green power has the characteristic of being cheaper since
it is free and renewabl e. It can be cheaper than conventiona

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- March 2, 2005



sources if, in the case of wnd power, the turbines are
optimally placed in a wind farm that is l|large enough to see
significant size of product. He said that this is evidenced
with the comunities of Palnmer and Bethel, which are good
exanples of this industrial sized green power being inplenented.

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS continued to state that it would behoove
the rest of the state to look to develop alternative energy
sources "where we can, where it's wse and where we are starved
for it, and in whatever form nakes the best sense".

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS stated, in deference to his own comittee
efforts, that when his conmttee hears the next bill, in which
the commttee asks the Alaska Industrial Devel opnent and Export
Aut hority (Al DEA) to help finance the construction of
alternative energy sources for those communities for whom it
does neke sense, you would be pleased with the direction and
| eadership that we are trying to provide through this
| egi sl ative body.

3:39:57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if anyone el se was supporting it,
nore specifically Al DA

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS affirnmed his own sentinents and comented
that he did not care, since AIDA had noved away from being
interested in what is good for the average Al askan. He then
added that cheap power developnent is a critical part of
Al aska's future in its rural communities.

3:40:43 PM

CHRIS ROSE, Executive Director for the New Energy for Al aska
Project, announced his full support for the resolution and
believed that the state has the unique opportunity to be |eaders
in this field. He indicated that many states had already
benefited economically with jobs created in the construction
associated with new alternative energy sources, and because of
the high tech businesses that are noving into these states.
This is, he said, due to these governnents realization of the

need for diverse energy sources. He ended by stating that
Al aska has many nore opportunities than these states to lead in
this field, including geothermal, tidal, wnd, hydroelectric,

whi ch are just a few exanpl es.

3:42: 07 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -7- March 2, 2005



MR. ROSE explained that hydrogen is sonmething that is going to
sustain Anericans in the future and since there is an increasing
demand for energy in the world, especially from third world
countries like India and China, and that the world s reserve of
fossil fuels is finite, and a contributing factor to planet w de
pollution, and lastly concern about the related issue of climte
change.

MR. ROSE announced that right now there are wind farns being
built all over the Mdwest and that opportunity is here as well.

He illustrated this point by referring to Fire Island off the
coast of Anchorage, Al aska. The scale of that project wll
enable it to be very economcally conpetitive with natural gas
and coal fire plants at 4 cents a kilowatt an hour. The price

of natural gas and coal are going up and the price of wind is
negative- it is free. He indicates that his group, made up of
various utility conpanies, have all conme together to support
this resolution and the eventual wuse of alternative energy
sour ces.

3:44: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWCORD thanked the previous speaker for the
article today in the l|local paper and told the conmttee that
renewabl e energy does not have to be in conflict with the
standard types of energy and instead should be seen as natura
progressi on and an eventuality.

MR. ROSE stated that this is true for Alaskans and that the
creation of Hydrogen fuel begins with the already plentiful
natural resources, |ike geothermal and wind, that can be used
for hydrogen production, through electrolysis. The source for
hydrogen is water and this is very plentiful for Al askans.

CHAI R ANDERSON asked if there was anyone in the conmttee that
wanted to nove the bill out.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD noved to report HCR 3 out of commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes. There being no objection, it was so ordered.

HB 150- LI CENSI NG RADI OLOG CAL TECHNI CI ANS

3:45: 58 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- March 2, 2005



CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 150, "An Act requiring licensure of
occupations relating to radiological t echnol ogy, radi ati on
t herapy, and nuclear nmedicine technology; and providing for an
effective date.”

JON BITTNER, Staff to Representative Anderson, introduced the
bill by first reading the follow ng opening statenent:

House Bill 150 wll establish educational and
certification standards for the health care personne
in Alaska who perform nedical imging and radiation
pr ocedur es.

MR. BI TNER t hen continued by reading the foll ow ng:

Any radiology procedure is only as effective as the
person performng it. An under exposed chest x-ray
cannot reveal pneunonia or a malignant |esion, just as
an inadequate nmammography technique cannot detect
breast cancer. No matter what the procedure, the
Radi ol ogi cal Technol ogist’s knowl edge of anatony,
car ef ul application of radi ati on and ski |l ful
operation of sophisticated nedical equipnment are the
keys to its success. To be clinically wuseful
di agnosti c-i magi ng exans nust be accurate.

Thirty-eight states have adopted recommendations for
state licensure of radiology personnel. Alaska is not
one of those states. Establishing state standards
will ensure that Al askans will have access to safe and
high quality radiological care. Li censure wll
establish radiation protection neasures as well as
education and credentialing standards that will ensure
t he conpetency of persons operating nedical equipnent
emtting radiation.

MR. BI TNER concl uded by stating the follow ng:

To ensure that the citizens of the State of Al aska
recei ve maxi mum protection fromthe harnful effects of
excessive and I npr oper exposure to radi ation,
| icensure nmust be passed to establish standards.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked about the letter from the Al askan

Acadeny O Physician Assistants and wondered if they were in
favor of the bill.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -9- March 2, 2005



MR. BI TNER stated that there is sonme confusion here.
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG stated that he believed there was a
letter that was floating around in the past that said that they
were supporting the bill. He then stated that there was current
| etter stating some kind of opposition to the bill.

MR. BI TNER then stated that this was sent recently.

3:49: 55 PM

DONNA  RUFSHOLM  Chairman, Al aska Society for Radiologica
Technol ogi sts, stated that establishing state procedures for

licensure has been an ongoing effort by this group. She
indicated that it started ten years ago and only in the last 4
years has any progress been nade. She then continued that

currently there are no stipulations or standards for the
regul ati on of radiological technicians. She reveal ed that anyone
off the street can take a job as a radiological technician at a
hospital or clinic. Radiologists in the state have sonme concern
about the quality of these radiographs that they are receiving
from villages that do not have properly educated personnel, as
they are nore often than not, bad inmages or inmages that are not
viable for use in diagnosis. Furthernore, she said, there are
huge concerns from radiologists about these poor efforts at
i mgi ng because of the high levels of radiation that result.
This radiation, she said, inpacts not only the villager getting
t he i magi ng but the uneducated technician as well.

M5. RUFSHOLM stated that HB 150 would establish educational and
certification standards for the healthcare personnel to perform
the radiation imging procedures. She pointed out that studies
show that these kinds of efforts to educate the operator insure
better work quality which leads to quality information being
used for proper diagnosis. She continued by stating that it
woul d al so reduce healthcare costs since repetitive exposures
woul d not be made due to inadequate know edge of radiologica

science and technique. This bill will ensure that excellence in
radi ol ogi cal imging and better healthcare for Al askans.

M5. RUFSHOLM then outlined the history of this effort by stating
that over the years the group had been working extensively with
the Al aska State Hospital and Nursing Home Association (ASHNA),
where we tried to address sone of the issues that are being
faced by the rural communities that do not have credentialed
i ndi vi dual s perform ng radiol ogi cal procedures.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 10- March 2, 2005



M5. RUFSHOLM then stated that there were sone concerns about
access to radiological facilities and services if there were
some st andar di zati on and i censing put into ef fect.
Neverthel ess, there is support from ASHNA for this bill.

3:53:15 PM

M5. RUFSHOLM i ndi cated that her group does work with association
of Physician Assistants, nost recently last OCctober, when we
addressed sonme of their concerns. She indicated that the fina
outcone of this neeting was that they wanted to be |isted under
the definition of licensed practitioners.

M5. RUFSHOLM pointed out that she did change the |anguage to
include them as licensed practitioners in what was then called
HB 186. She continued to state that she had also worked with
the association of nurses and resolved issues that they felt
concerned about. Recently this week, the Physician Assistants
have brought up new issues and she stated that they wll be
testifying to this today.

3:54:26 PM

CHAI R ANDERSON pointed out that M. Rusholm is the technica
person at the neeting.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX stated that she was a firm believer in not
fixing sonething that did not seemngly need to be fixed, and
asked what the problem was exactly wth the radiological
technician issue in the state of Al aska.

M5. RUFSHOLM affirmed that there was indeed a huge problem that
is obviated by her presentation and the one that will be given
by M. Cyde Pearce, the state radiol ogi cal inspector.

M5. RUFSHOLM described this presentation as one that wll
i ncl ude physical displays of terribly poor radiographs that wll
illustrate exanples of radiographs that, because of faulty
techni ques, and because many contain both over exposure and
under exposure, the radi ographs were not viable for diagnosis or
use in clinic evaluation. She then went on to say that these
exanpl es being shown today were actual 'x-rays' taken by village
technicians that were sent to radiologists elsewhere in the
st at e.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -11- March 2, 2005



REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX expressed her nescience and asked what
excessi ve doses of radiation neant.

M5. RUFSHOLM carefully explained that radiation exposure is
measured accunul atively and that excessive exposure can be
hazar dous.
3:57: 33 PM

M5. RUFSHOLM went on to explain that a radiation burn can be
evi denced by the manifestation of erythema in a few days, which

is followed by the deterioration of the skin. This, she said,
culmnates in an ulcer. However, she said, the connection
bet ween over exposure and radi ation and t he resul t ant
mani festation is not sonething that happens overnight. Thi s

t akes nont hs, sonetines years.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked that if 38 states require |icensing,
woul d there be any stats that illustrate that these difficulties
happened nore in the states w thout |icensing.

M5. RUFSHOLM answered that no, she did not know about any
docunentation that would illustrate this.

CHAI R ANDERSON asked how Ms. Rusholm was able to reconcile the
i ssue of rural Al aska not having access to educated technicians
and the fact that if it were the case of either not having any
radiology abilities and poor quality radiology services, that
t hey woul d rather have the latter.

3:59: 27 PM

M5. RUFSHOLM expl ained that the exenptions do exist for this
bill and there would be not problem for themto obtain technical
education and continue doing what they are doing, provided that
they are able to sit for a national registry exam nation, after
which they would receive a limted scope license. They can sit
in their hones and do this test online. The costs are nom nal.

CLYDE PEARCE, Chief Inspector, Radiological Health for the State
of Al aska, Departnent of Health, stated that he perforned
i nspections at over 360 facilities, which includes about 800
sources of radiation. He then indicated that currently he worked
on scientific equipment, and in the past, he worked on airport
screening nachi nes. He began by first referring to
Representative Ledoux and her earlier question about exanples of
radi ati on exposure leading to hospitalization and stating very

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -12- March 2, 2005



affirmatively that there was several exanples of docunentation

in prestigious nedical journals. He cites the Anerican Society
of Radi ol ogi cal Technol ogists, which conducted a |ongitudinal
study that continues to the present, |ooked at various diseases

t hat were suffered by people working as radi ol ogi cal
technicians. One exanple he said, was that they found they
suffered three tinmes the national rate of breast cancer in non
operators before |icensing began in other areas.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if these statistics were done when
t he equi pmrent emitted nore radiati on than nodern equi prnent.

MR. PEARCE answered that that the actual x-ray was discovered in
1895 and the first biological injury from radiation occurred in

this country the follow ng year. He then continued discussing
the norbidity factors, primarily the loss of fingers and hands
that dentists and other nedical professionals suffered. He

pointed out that the first death of radiation exposure took
place in the United States in the late part of the 19th century
by a man who worked for Thomas Edi son. He then tal ked about the
use of radiation for cosnetic hair renoval and how it resulted
in arm anputations for wonen in |arge nunbers. The dangers were
seen right away and safety neasures were put into place.

MR. PEARCE continued by saying that the discovery of the CAT
scan in 1971 changed this trend. He announced that the exposure
rate of this type of imgery was 10 to 100 tines higher than the
normal Xx-ray dose. This is justified nedically, since nmany
life-threatening conditions can be found quickly and mtigated
before things get worse. An exanple, he offered, would be sub
dural hematoma inside the skull, that would increase in pressure
and cause nmmjor damage to the brain if left undetected. He then
stated that a real concern is the |evel of exposure to children
using adult doses of radiation.

4:06: 37 PM

MR. PEARCE stated that nost of the burns that we have seen has
occurred with stints and fluoroscopy and has been done by
uneducated and non-radiol ogi cal technicians and doctors. Thi s
indicates, he said, that education and training nake the
difference and this lack of training is directly related to the
injuries that are docunented.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if this bill allowed doctors to
per form x-rays.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 13- March 2, 2005



MR. PEARCE answered by stating that this bill is specific to
technicians and excludes licensed healings arts professional
practitioners.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX answered that she believed, based on
previous testinony that the issue was one between trained
radi ol ogi sts and doctors, albeit, general practitioners who do
not have the training in radiation science.

MR. PEARCE answered plaintively that this bill had nothing to
do with radiologists but it does address safe versus hazardous
exposur e.

4:09: 07 PM

MR. PEARCE continued by stating that clarification of the bil
over tinme had led to many who once opposed the bill to cone
forward with support. He then said that a lot of things have
been changed including a <change in how the bill treated
geogr aphi cal | ocati on. He clarified this by stating that this
was not a rural versus netropolis issue. As an exanple, he

pointed to the worst problem that he had encountered which was
found in downtown Anchorage. He explained that the problemthat
occurred was exposing patients to great anounts of radiation.

MR. PEARCE pointed out to the conmittee several exanples, and
[ pointing to several radiographs], said that the flaws that were
found in Anchorage were evidence of too nuch exposure and yet,
he said, this technician's supervisor explained to her that
there was not enough exposure. In other words, there was not
enough radiation. This was, he said, conpletely opposite of
reality.

MR. PEARCE then described an experinent that he and a coll eague
did at the University of Al aska. They produced a perfect
radi ograph that was nedically diagnostic. He then explained that
they did a series of exposures that exponentially doubled the

radi ati on each tine. The first doubled the normal optinal
radi ograph which nmade tissue observation inpossible and |eft
bone anal ysis okay. He indicated that to get a full black

radi ograph, the dunmy patient had received 60 tinmes the optina
level of radiation. This is close to what is happening here in
Al aska.

MR PEARCE warned that the reason these technicians nust be

trained and be required to operate at higher caliber than they
currently are required to do. He pointed out that current state

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -14- March 2, 2005



regul ations stipulate that technicians nust be trained but it
does not say for what duration. The people that have gone to
prof essional schools are excluded by this bill and are left
unt ouched, but those so-called technicians that oper at e
radi ol ogi cal equipnent that are no trained wll be affected.

MR. PEARCE ended by bluntly stating that this bill really has to
do with people that are exposing other people to unsafe |evels
of radiation. He then exhibited several other exanples of bad
radi ography including a cervical spine shot, which exposed the
occi pital and tenporal aspects of the skull wth huge anmounts of
unneeded radiation, in addition to the chest and the thyroid
gland, which is very sensitive to radiation. He al so pointed
out an exanple that showed a patient receiving a cervical spine
shot, not being asked to lower his shoulders to mnimze
exposure to the chest.

MR. PEARCE pointed out that depending on what part of the body
you are trying to image, the techniques will vary and it is
I npor t ant not to visualize radiography Ilike one would
phot ography, since they are very different approaches to imaging
physical reality.

4:15:41 PM

MR. PEARCE stated that getting an overdose does not mean you are
nmortally injured. He pointed out that there are sone nedica
standards of practice regarding acceptable radiation exposure
limts. However, the state regulations do not specify radiation
exposure limts and decisions regarding radiation exposure are
left to the clinician. However, this responsibility that is
levied towards the health care provider, does not mean that
radi ation-i magi ng go beyond what is a nedically sound exposure.

MR. PEARCE then referred back to his previous exanple and said
that exposing the patient 60 tines the optimal level is not
accept abl e. He ends by stating that it does require a nodi cum
of intelligence.

CHAI R ANDERSON gave his appreciation gave a succinct sumration
to the speaker by stating that whether it is over or under the
medi cally appropriate radiation exposure, the problem lies in
having to repeat the procedure due to first tine technical
difficulties. He then asked if getting these people |icensed
and educated was the quintessential thing to do so that this
woul d not ever happen.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -15- March 2, 2005



MR. PEARCE stated that this would not occur if these people were

educat ed. He concurred with the Chair and then offered the
reasonabl e assertion that if there was an accident, it would be
a sal vageabl e radi ograph. The whole idea here is that this is
not photography and this tool is not conparable to the canera
[in that the fornmer is passive]. The x-ray is an active
adm nistration of radiation. He nentioned also that even
di agnostic radiation |evels have been linked to dimnished

capacity in intelligence devel opnent, and to breast cancer.

CHAI R ANDERSON stated that MR PEARCE had nmade the point that
the sponsor was trying to make and asked if he would stand by
for questi oning.

ED HALL, legislative Iliaison for the Al askan Acadeny of
Physi ci an Assistants, stated that there has not been a flip-flop
on our position and have always thought that some of the
| anguage on the bill could be changed so that it appealed to the
group. Basically this would have been the inclusion of
physician assistants and nurses practitioners as part of the
excl uded group not affected by the new bill.

4:21:11 PM

MR. HALL indicated that as PA's, they recognize that his group
works for our physician within their specific specialties.
However, he said, that one of his concerns was why the bill was
not being hear in the HES commttee instead of the Labor and
Conmer ce committ ee.

MR. HALL continued by noting that the |anguage was changed and
that wupon further reading he pointed out that in section
8.89.120, beginning on page 2, line 29, and ending on page 3,
line 12, section C, the bill never states whether or not out his
pr of essi on can do radi ol ogy.

4:24:20 PM

MR, HALL indicates that he is nostly speaking on behalf of
peopl e who have the radiol ogi cal equipnent and will be kept from
using it for sinple radiol ogy. He agreed thought that the bil
dealing with higher end inmaging |ike cat-scans, and fl uoroscopy,
do need to regulated, but putting sinple radiology into the sane
class would be a detrinment to healthcare. He also said that
requiring this amount of training for the nunber and type of
i magi ng that is done annually does not bal ance itself.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 16- March 2, 2005



MR. HALL then described the actual process that goes on between
a clinic and the radiologist that actually reads the film He
said that if the radiologist nmakes a coment about the film
i.e., that it is too dark or too light, then that is noted. The
radi ol ogi st nmakes a qualified read or they refuse to look at it
if is very poor quality.

MR. HALL then indicated that he understood the passion behind
this bill, however, he announced that what the acadeny would
support is changing the bill so that there is a requirenment for
certification for anyone doing high end imaging including
nucl ear nmedicine, M, Cat-scans, and any process that m ght
result in higher than normal radiation exposure, but not i npact
the day-to-day routine use of l|low grade radiation used wth
nor mal x-rays.

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that at first he was not going to
support this bill but after receiving several exanples of the
probl em and experiencing a radiol ogical over exposure in his own
famly, he changed his m nd. He indicated that his son had
fallen and hurt his arm and after listening to a clinic PA
exclaim that the arm was broken, it was re-shot at the hospita

where the radiologist said that it was not broken. He said that
this was a perfect exanple of doubl e exposure.

MR. HALL asked if the filmwas read at the hospital and asked if
t he radi ol ogi st indicated what was wong with the first film

CHAI R ANDERSON answered that he was just follow ng orders and
did not get a reason for the problematic film

MR. PEARCE stated that he heard something in the previous
speakers speech that gave him sone concern. He pointed out that
the bill sinmply is not centered on physician assistants at all
He then indicated that in AS 8.89.100, the bill is tal king about
who is inpacted by the bill and who is not, as found in
subsection (b). He stated that what a PA knows or doesn't know
is irrelevant. This bill does not concern this profession.

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that he was going to obtain a |ega
opinion on this and get back to the conmttee.

MR. HALL asked if the two nurses that work underneath him were
going to have to be |icensed.

MR. PEARCE answered that yes, any healthcare worker that does
not have a professional degree will have to be |icensed.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -17- March 2, 2005



MR. HALL then asked if he were going to be forced to do all the
shots until these wonmen were certified.

4:32:18 PM

MR. PEARCE answered that the training adm nistered by M. Hal
can be evaluated and take the place of certification. He then
said that the bill is a platform and refinement will certainly
take place. He then again said that it does not matter what the
PA does or does not know and that this lack of know edge is
dealt with by the board and not this bill.

MR. HALL asserted that the nedical board would rely heavily on
this bill and pointed out that this is why diligence was being
paid to the passage of the bill now.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG stated that it may be possible to apply
for tenporary permts as a transitional phase, and that this may

have to be determned while the bill is in comittee.
CHAI R ANDERSON indicated to M. Hall that this bill is a work in
progr ess.

BARBARA HUFF- TUCKNESS, Director, Governnental Affairs, Teansters

Uni on 159, i ndicated that in representing radiol ogical
t echnol ogi st s, she was surprised that certification in
radi ol ogi cal science was not required. She said that training

and certification of this training is a mnust ubiquitously around
the state, and that the South Peninsula and Kodiak Island
Hospital already require certification. She then said that if
you don't have a properly trained worker and as the equi pnent
becomes nore technical, the lack of certification wll affect
j ob performance. The workers that are being utilized as
radi ol ogi cal technicians should be encouraged to go to schoo
and becone experts in their field.

M5. HUFF- TUCKNESS t hen changed course to voice an objection to
the fact that truck drivers to be certified since they haul the
equi pnent around the state, yet radiology technicians are not
required by state law to be certified. She describes this
oversight as appalling. She asked the conmttee to please pass
the bill through

4:36: 35 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 18- March 2, 2005



STEVE GAGE, physician assistant, Sitka, Alaska, announced that
he was Chair of the Community Health Care Directors Association
and representative SE Alaska Healthcare Consortium He
i ndi cated that he had sone concern about the bill and how it
affects md-level practitioners, or Nurse Practitioners and
Physi ci an Assi stants. He agreed with M. Hall that this is not
comuni cated effectively or explicitly.

MR. GAGE stated that his chief reason for testifying is the
concern he and others have about access to basic radiol ogica
services in the villages and deep in the bush, for basic
extrenmty care. He described the conmmunity health aid program
as a collection of 500 clinics that are headed by md-Ievel
provi ders, such as nurse practitioners and physician assistants.
He continued by stating that these clinics are the backbone of
healthcare in the rural areas and wthout the clinics, there

woul d be no nodern healthcare. He then stated that the main
thing that these clinics are in need of are radiological
servi ces. Unfortunately, he said that native communities do

have to take a plane ride into a larger towm to get the sane
services that Representative Anderson wused for his son in
Anchorage. Wather and daylight play a factor in transportation
to the hospital since flight to and fromthere from the village
is the only way to get the patient to the services that they do
not have in the bush. Things of this nature could be taken care
of in the village and the trip would not be necessary.

4:39: 23 PM

MR. GACGE then stipulated that even though the md-Ieve
practitioners are grandfathered in, the mnedical workers that
work for them are not and that he wondered what kind of training
is going to be required by the state for education and training.
He pointed out there are 20 hours of continuing education and
that these workers were busy people and could not be bothered
with this type of requirenent, since it would not be feasible
financially. He then added that it |eaves the clinics
short handed while they are gone. He then stated that the clinics
have been utilized the protocol already put into place by the
Al askan Native Anerican Healthcare D agnostic Training. This is
augnented by the fact that all of the filns that are taken are
overseen by an actual radiologist and there is dialog that takes
pl ace imedi ately. He ended by stating that he was concerned
about the fees and that the training not be overkill.

4:42:49 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -19- March 2, 2005



CHAI R ANDERSON stated that he would try to work on the cost
factors in rural Alaska and trying to keep the fees reasonabl e.

4:43: 25 PM

ANN DAl LY, physi ci an assi stant, regi onal clinic, L11iams,
Al aska, pointed out that the 7 renote clinics in her region do
not have ready access to high end radiol ogical diagnostic care
provided by trained, educated technicians, and lack the ability
to have the native workers directly supervised by a certified
t echni ci an. She indicated that they also lack the ability to
effectively certify all of these uneducated native workers. She
then pointed out that the physician assistants working in these
clinics are well qualified to do sinple radiol ogical procedures
and that the radiographs that are created by the physician
assistants are reviewed by radiologists and there is discussion
between the two professionals. She indicated that there are
nmeasures of protection in the clinics that neasure the anmount of
radi ati on exposure that occurs.

M5. DAILY made it a point to nention that she had worked with
radi ol ogical technicians that were certified, and that she
actually experienced on occasion, both over and under exposed
films created by credential ed staff.

M5. DAILY ended by stating that House Bill provided no
additional safety assurances and in some instances, Wwll
negatively inpact the ability to provide decent healthcare to
sone Al askans. She asked the committee to consider the
financial inpact on these renote vill ages.

4:47:09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX pointed out that M. Daily operates the
sub regional class of village healthcare, but those serving
underneath her are not nedical professionals and that they
certainly were not physician assistants.

M5. DAILY agreed and answered that this was correct.

GUMENSI NDO  ROSALES, regi stered r adi ol ogi cal t echnol ogi st ,
indicated that the current nedical system in Al aska is broken,
especially based on the testinony of Cyde Pearce. He then
poi nted out that testifiers that have cone before are com ng at
this from a weak and unrelated issue, primarily that being
access and the inability for the native workers to be able to
afford to leave and get training and certifications. He then

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 20- March 2, 2005



poi nted out that by investing $70 a year, and $140 dollars for
two years, they can continue their education (CE) and not be
burdened with the travel expenses or the tinme spent away
receiving the training in a classroom He ended by stating that
the only financial inpact here is the initial training which al
uneducated workers wll have to nmanage, and wupdating this
training can be as sinple as reading a nagazi ne provided by the
American Society for Radiol ogical Technol ogy, which they will be
a part of when they are certified.

4:49: 27 PM

MR. ROSALES referring to Article 1, Section 8.89.150, stated
that this bill is primarily pointed at ionizing radiation and
not rmagnetic energy. He then referred to Article 3, Section

8.89.990, where it defines the work of the limted technician as
one that is primarily concerned with the "the axial -appendi cul ar
skel et on". He said, from his experience, that the axial-
appendi cul ar aspect of the human skel eton includes the head and
neck, and spine and that these areas are not touched by the
i nexperienced technicians, since the eyes and the abdonen are
very vulnerable to radiation exposure. He indicated that this
work is reserved for the radiologist or a certified technician.

CHAIR ANDERSON asked if M. Rosales would nenorialize his
testimony and make a concrete argunent that is definitive.

MR. ROSALES stated that in the industry, the nationw de standard
consi sted of 24 hours of continuing education exans (CEE), and
changing the bills stipulation of 20 to the national standard of
24, which would nake it easier for people who are transferring
fromother states to work in Al aska.

CHAI R ANDERSON asked the speaker to contribute this in witten
form He then closed public testinony.

[ HB 150 was hel d over.]

HB 147-1 NSURANCE

4:52:49 PM

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the last order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 147, "An Act relating to the regulation of
i nsurance, insurance licensing, surplus lines, insurer deposits,
not or vehi cl e service contracts, guar ant eed aut onobi | e
protection products, heal th di scount pl ans, third-party

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -21- March 2, 2005



adm ni strators, sel f - funded mul tiple enpl oyer wel fare
arrangenents, and self-funded governnental plans; and providing
for an effective date."

4:53:18 PM

CHRI STI NE SASSE, Departnent Director, City of Valdez, announced
that she was addressing Article 2, where the bill discusses
sel f-funded governnent plans, and how they are going to have to
conply with the provisions of AS 21.85. She indicated that her
bi ggest concern was the applicability clause found in Article 2,
page 15, line 8, which seened too broad in her eyes, though she
assuned that it was not intended to be so broad. She then
i ndicated that she had |ooked up AS 39.30.090 and it refers to
pl ans under the state of Alaska, but it appears that any other
state funded governnment plan has to conply. If this is the
case, then this entire Article 2 inposes onerous requirenments
for self funded governnental plans.

M5. SASSE then pointed out that the filing of the plan
description and the contribution rates and the financial reports
all have to be filed quarterly, and there has to be actuarial
menor anduns concerning all these issues. In addition to this,
there is a requirement to generate a board of trustees. She
added that this adds considerable expense to a plan and very
little benefit.

4:55:53 PM

M5. SASSE said that there is a conmttee that helps determ ne
how the plan is to be adm ni stered. It is very flexible and we
have assistance given by a consultant who helps us determ ne
what benefits are reasonabl e under the plan. In referring back
to the board of trustees, she said that having a board that is
indifferent and wuninterested in the participants of the
i nsurance plan seens ridiculous. On top of this is the cost of
the fidelity bond and the requirenent to have an actual actuary

| ook at and confirm the plan is financially sound. She al so
conplained about the requirement to conply wth additional
st andar ds. These additional standards include defining her

group as a mutual insurer, which requires the city to file a
certificate of authority with the state on an annual basis that
requires a financial assurance and |legal certification. She
poi nted out that nost conpanies have a separate departnent to do
these tasks and it is obvious, she said, that the city of Valdez
cannot do this and would be forced to hire a consultant to help
on this mtter. There is also, she said, the requirenent of

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -22- March 2, 2005



mutual insurers to pay taxes to the state, which nmeans that the
city would pay taxes to the state.

4:58:18 PM

M5. SASSE then stated that in addition to all of this, there are
the rules on regulations placed on the director, found on page
17, Section 21.85.230, I|ine 21. She pointed out that the
required coverage of risks in parity with other governnental
pl ans woul d increase the cost of insurance to the consuner. She
indicated that her city plan is a good one and that these new
changes wll double the cost of the insurance plans and
elimnate cost effective and flexible health insurance for those
that are under self funded governnental plans.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if her consultant was providing
actuarial analysis of solvency and al so asked if she had a stop-
| oss policy.

M5. SASSE answered that our consultants has provided us wth
consi derabl e anount of information that will hel p determ ne what
our premium levels will be. She then indicated that there is a
policy in place and reserves are in place, and have in fact, had
sonme high clainms recently but the financial reserves are stil
vi abl e and above the m ni mum required.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if she carried stop |oss
I nsur ance.

M5. SASSE answered that they do have stop | oss insurance.

GREG CULBERT, assistant school superintendent, Galena School
District, stated that his group has a self-funded plan and that
it would have the sanme problens as nentioned by M. Sasse. He
indicated that there was a cost effective plan for the enpl oyees
and a trustee council in place that adm nisters the insurance.
He stated that his group and all other self-funded governnenta
pl ans ought to be able to create their own insurance and manage
in their own way. In lieu of their viability, he indicated that
they have stop loss insurance, aggregate stop |oss insurance,
and they fund the policy quite well.

MR. CULBERT then asserted that if the true reason behind this
| anguage is to rid the state of self funded insurance groups

and get everyone into a nationwide policy that is based in the
| oner 48 insurance conglonerate, and then stated that the reason
for wanting self-funded insurance is a fiduciary responsibility

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 23- March 2, 2005



to save noney and divert it into the school itself, which then
hel ps the community.

MATT LARKIN, WIllis of Al aska, Anchorage, stated that he agreed
with both previous speakers. He then stated that he
specifically had problems with the applicability section, from
which there are nmany different readings that can gathered, and
that they do not nake it clear for who this section is intended.
He then commented that these new requirenents are onerous, and
burdensone and expensive. He continued by stating that new bill
is inmpractical by requiring these comunities to obtain a board
of trustees even though nost of these plans do not have the need
for a board of trustees, and, he asserted, certainly not one
that does not have a vested interest in the group plan. He
continued by stating that the fact that the group cannot use one
of their own as an entrusted trustee is ridiculous. Lastly, he
said that nost of these communities are not big enough to find
sonmeone that is not related or affected by the plan, or nore
inmportantly, bare the fiduciary liability, since they would not
be affected by its coverage.

MR. LARKIN then stated that inplenmenting this bill would be
hugely expensive costly as hiring actuaries and attorneys to
draft the trust docunent, and the prem um cost would be very
costly.

5:06: 36 PM

MR. LARKIN stated that all of these nunicipalities are under
budget constraints and that the addition of these requirenents

will increase costs, require them to reduce the benefit or have
the enployers pay nore for the insurance. He ended by stating
that there is nothing good that cone out of this bill and that

these groups already have good plans in place and they do not
need this type of regul ation.

RI CHARD CAMPBELL, GCeneral Services Director, Kenai Peninsula
Borough, asked if this bill would concern us and what the
reasoni ng behind the drastic changes that are being proposed.

MARY STOLL, trust attorney, Local 71 Trust, stated that the bil
pl aced an econom ¢ burden on self-funded plans and on the out of
state PK's. Wy does it carve out specifically self-funded
governnental plans and not all self funded plans that are
operating in the state. She assuned that it was sone sort of
ploy to drag self-regulated groups under the direction and
control of the Director of Insurance.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 24- March 2, 2005



M5. STOLL renmarked that these groups do not operate under
policies or contracts of insurance. The coverage is given with
boards of trustees, and is a product of collective bargaining
and the authority to operate in the state as required by AS
21.030.21B was provided by a letter of agreenent which is signed
by the Division of Retirenent and Benefits. She pointed out
t hat each year they work out what the contribution rate is going
to be based on advise from qualified consultants working in the
area of insurance.

5:11:13 PM
M5. STOLL then stated that she thought that these enployers

woul d want the contribution to go to the provision of benefits
and not the to the conpliance to onerous filing requirenents

provided in this bill. She then conplains about the
stipulations found in the bill concerning the organization and
the definitions that are used in the bill. She described the
bill as being sort of a quagnmre for her and the rest that were
trying to interpret the bill.

5.12: 28 PM

M5. STOLL stated that the independent funds already conplied
with the fiduciary standards of AR SA It would be easier to
file a 5500 with ARISA than conply with the statutes found in
this bill. She ended by stating that she did not know what the
bill was trying to achieve other than placing a huge economc

burden on plans that are already struggling to do the right
thing by their clients

5:13:17 PM
COLLEEN SAVO E, consultant, local public 71 trust, wanted to

speak specifically to the concerns of the local 71 trust, but
she indicated that there were several other governnental groups

that are not sure about its applicability. This bill inposes a
costly admnistrative burden and the filing requirenents that
are proposed in House Bill 147 is trenendous. The cost at

m nimum for an actuary would be 40 to 50 thousand dollars a
year.

5:15:15 PM
M5. SAVOE said the fidelity bond would be no less than 10

percent of the benefits paid the previous year. This is |arger
than that requirements of ARISA and larger than fidelity bonds

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 25- March 2, 2005



that nost healthcare insurers hold. A bond of this size
according to several insurance carriers we talked to said that
is wuld increase admnistrative rates and increase the
deductible on the premiuns held by the clients since it may not
be considered an ARI SA bond.

M5. SAVOE then said that the requirenment for an actuary is too
much since not too many of themare willing to insure their work
and assune the liability of the plan. She continued by stating
t hat enployer plan contribution rates have to be filed 60 days
after the end of the plan year which neans that State plans have
to be filed by the adm nistration sonetine towards the end of
session. She nentioned that this m ght be an inconveni ence.

M5. SAVO E ended by stating that the bill is unnecessary and
that all the plans that she knew about were doing quite well and
had governing organizations and audits by separate oversight.
She ended by stating that people involved in these plans have an
appeal s process that includes arbitration and civil suits.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked, referring to the third party

arbitration, if each nenber received this type of appeals
process.
5:19:51 PM

M5. SAVO E answered that each plan determ nes what the appeals
process is going to be. They go to the board and then on to
bi nding arbitration, which is a |ow cost alternative to courts.

M5. STOLL stated that any allegation of fiduciary breech or non-
funding, or insufficient funding of the trust, any participant
has a right to bring suit for a breech in trust. She continued
by stating that there is anple opportunity to hear testinony
concerning alleged violation of trust to be heard in the court
system

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG stated that he sees a problem with the
| ack of supervision in the arbitration node, and that this area
needs to discussed further since it is clear that one has to sue
in order to have someone hear grievances. Under state |law, the
patient bill of rights, which puts in place a third party peer
review that that is "scientific" peer review and not sone
arbitration

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 26- March 2, 2005



M5. STOLL answered that it's nore than a two-tier process. The
partici pant would have an opportunity to appeal to the clains
admnistrator, and fromthere they go to the board of trustees,
and they in turn, refer this to a nedical review corporation who
is given no incentive for one decision or another. She ended by
stating that there are rules that govern self-funded plans in
the United States and Canada.

CHAI R ANDERSON said that this was a work in progress.

[HB 147 was hel d over.]
ADJ QURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at
5:23:42 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -27- March 2, 2005



